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Located in the central business district of downtown Madison 
Borough the two buildings nominated herein are at a very busy inter­ 
section (Route 24 and Green Village Road). Directly behind the 
buildings is an embanked railroad line.

Madison Public Library, Main Street and Green Village Road, 1900. 
Richardsonian Romanesque structure designed by the Boston architectural 
firm of Brigham and Adden. This building, physically most impressive,

is distinguished by its massive heavy rock-faced block
form, round-arched entranceway and windows, and projecting octagonal 
clock tower with high pitched conical roof. Irregular in form the 
entire roof is slate and capped at the breaks by tiles. The tower 
cornice is highlighted at the corners by gargoyle-like stone carvings. 
The stone is polychrome, an unusually late usage of this technique. 
Throughout the building it is evident that only the highest quality 
craftsmen were employed in its construction.

The exterior of the building is distinguished by an arched porch, 
foliated stonework, and a tower with gargoyle rainspouts. Inside can 
be found stenciled ceilings and walls, painted imitations of mosaic 
tile, oak woodwork (including a spiral staircase), homiletic stained 
glass and custom-made bronze hardware.

The Library is now tenanted by the Museum of Early Trades and 
Crafts, which provides a much-needed adaptive use to the structure.

James Building. 23-25 Main Street and 2-8 Green Village Road. 
1899. An imposing three story orange brick commercial/public building 
with a curved facade, this structure is Jacobethan Revival in style as 
reflected by the steep sided gables rising out of the roof (the center 
gable has segmental stepped Flemish curves while the flanking gables 
are triangular form). Constructed as a commercial/public building, the 
rent was to finance the subsequent building of the library and furnish 
it with a continuing endowment.

The structure is divided into a six bay fenestration on the Green 
Village Road side and 3 bays on Main Street. Both are brought together 
by a two bay curving facade at the corner.
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Fine examples of Richardsonian Romanesque and Jacobethan Revival 
architecture the Madison Public Library and the James (Mercantile) 
Building share an unusual interrelationship between a public facility 
and a private commercial structure. The rent from the James Building 
financed construction of the library and furnished an endowment for 
its operation. The library was an important educational resource in 
Madison. The James Building was one of the most prominent commercial 
structures in the town when it was built. •'

Architecture.

The Madison Public Library is an excellent example of Richard­ 
sonian Romanesque style architecture.

Indeed, this Richardsonian Romanesque public building is one of 
the best of its style in New Jersey. Suffering from few changes since 
its erection in 1900, it has a heavy rock-faced massing steep-pitched 
slate roof capped ,at the breaks by tiles, arched he^yy entranceways, 
foliated stonework, and an octagonal clock tower with a steep colonial 
roof highlighted at the cornices by gargoyle rainspouts. The interior 
is enhanced with stenciled ceilings and walls, painted simulations of 
mosaic tile, oak woodwork and paneling, homiletic stained glass and 
custom-made bronze hardware. The polychromatic exterior of the library 
is an unusually late usage of this technique indicating either the 
conservative nature of the architects or the traditional demands of 
their clients.

Brigham and Adden, architects.

Other than the records of the Madison Public Library there is no 
verification of the collaboration of Brigham and Adden.

Charles Brigham ( -1925), a F.'A.I.A. out of Boston, Massachu­ 
setts, primarily worked within the New England region. Early in his 
career he paired with John Sturgis to build the Boston Museum (e. 1876) 
at Copley Square (replaced by the Plaza Hotel around 1900). Later 
Brigham joined with John Spofford to create the firm of Brigham and 
Spofford which functioned from the 1880's to c. 1900. From 1905-1909 
Brigham was associated with the firm of Brigham, Coveney and Bisbee 
(nee Coveney and Bisbee).
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Block 44, Lot 1-A = Library 
Owner: Madison Borough

Hartley Dodge Memorial
Kings Road
Madison, New Jersey 0?940

Block 51i Lot 1 = James Building
Owners James Building, Inc. 

c/o 25 Jackson Avenue 
Chatham, New Jersey 07928
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Significance (continued)

The periodical American_______ 
designs done by Brigham indicating a 
English Tudor, and Romanesque styles.

Architect and Building News has numerous 
penchance for Neo-classical,

Two of Brigham's buildings are already on the National Register. 
The Richardsonian Romanesque Stoughton Railroad Station in Massachu­ 
setts (1888) and the Lewiston, Maine City Hall (1890-92) which he 
collaborated with John Spofford to build.

Little is known of W.P. Adden, architect, save the fact that he 
at least co-designed the Madison Public Library.

The James Building is an imposing Jacobethan Revival 3 story 
orange glazed brick commercial structure with a curved facade to fit 
the contour of the street. The roof with a curved and stepped center 
Flemish gable is flanked by alternate large and small triangular form 
gables. The enormous size of this structure made it ideal for public 
functions. The size and its corner location makes it a focal aesthetic 
landmark for anyone coming into Madison from Morristown via Route 24. 
The architect for this structure is unknown, although it was possibly 
designed also by Brigham.

EDUCATION

The Madison Public Library when it opened on Memorial Day, 1900, 
became Madison's first public library. Almost from the start its 
programs were progressively oriented to providing all area inhabitants 
with library services. Until 1912 a horse-drawn bookmobile carried 
library benefits to outlying districts — an important service not 
renewed until 1922 by the Morris County Library. From 1900 until 1906 
a free public lecture series was sponsored; one each year delivered in 
Italian. This, together with a substantial collection of the Italian- 
language books, recognized the importance of Madison's large immigrant 
community. Bilingual service was in tradition of larger urban li­ 
braries and settlement houses of the period, but infrequently available 
in smaller towns such as Madison.
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Significance (continued) 

SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN

The James Building and the Public Library opposite enjoyed a 
symbiotic relationship early in the 20th century; an example of specu­ 
lation for public benefit. The James Building, built in 1899 by Dr. 
Willis James, was to use its commercial rents to finance construction 
of the Madison Public Library and furnish an endowment for its contin­ 
ued operation. This visionary plan was successful until the Great 
Depression which eventually wiped out the commercial revenue.
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